Community Safety Partnership Plan

North East Lincolnshire



2022-2025

CONTENTS

| 1. | Foreword from the Chair of Community Safety Partnership | 4 | |
|---------------------------|--|----|--|
| 2. | Introduction | 5 | |
| 3. | Vision, mission, and values | 7 | |
| I | Partnership vision | 7 | |
| I | Partnership mission | 7 | |
| I | Partnership values | 7 | |
| I | North East Lincolnshire Outcomes Framework | 7 | |
| 4. | Setting the scene | 8 | |
| 5. | Achieving the vision "all people in North East Lincolnshire will feel safe and are safe": our outcomes | 9 | |
| 6. | Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner's aims | 10 | |
| 7. | What is our baseline? | 11 | |
| I | Domestic abuse | 11 | |
| | Anti-social behaviour | 12 | |
| Offending and reoffending | | 13 | |
| | Adult offending | 13 | |
| | Youth offending | 14 | |
| : | Serious violence | 14 | |
| , | Violence against women and girls | 15 | |
| | Adolescent risk | 15 | |
| | Alcohol and substance dependency1 | | |
| I | Neighbourhood networking1 | | |
| I | Preventing violent extremism | | |

| | Fackling modern slavery | 18 |
|-----|---|----|
| 8. | What will be different as a result of working together as a community safety partnership? | 19 |
| | Domestic abuse | 19 |
| | Anti-social behaviour | 19 |
| | Offending and reoffending | 19 |
| | Adult offending | 19 |
| | Youth offending | 20 |
| | Serious violence | |
| , | Violence against women and girls | 20 |
| | Adolescent risk | |
| | Alcohol and substance dependency | 21 |
| | Neighbourhood networking | |
| | Preventing violent extremism | |
| | Fackling modern slavery | 22 |
| | How will we achieve our outcomes? | |
| 10. | How will we track our performance? | 26 |

1. Foreword from the Chair of Community Safety Partnership

Understanding what matters most to local people, what makes them safe and feel safe is at the heart of this plan. Working together as the North East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership we want to build communities where people are kept safe from crime and disorder, and our most vulnerable residents are supported and protected.

As a partnership it is imperative that we start with what we want North East Lincolnshire to be like, and then deliver activity that works towards this ideal. This plan focuses our efforts around the aspirational vision that *all people in North East Lincolnshire feel safe and are safe* and we ask ourselves "what difference will we see as a result of our actions?"

Through our annual crime survey, you have told us what is important to you. Based on those findings, and on crime data telling us what is happening in our local area, we will focus our efforts into two areas: reducing overall crime, and protecting vulnerable communities.

North East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership works closely with our neighbouring community safety partnerships in North Lincolnshire, Hull and the East Riding of Yorkshire to share good practice and resources where it is beneficial to do so. This helps us, as a region, to work towards the Police and Crime Commissioner's vision that *people are safe and have confidence in the organisations that work together to tackle crime*. We also continue to work innovatively and intrinsically with our voluntary sector partners to deliver more efficient and effective frontline services that provide real outcomes for local people.

Overall crime figures have seen a decrease in 2020/21 and we hope to continue this trend throughout 2021 and beyond by focusing on the crimes that cause the most threat, risk and harm. We will continue to maximise opportunities that enable us to work even better together. First time youth entrants to the criminal justice system are showing a downward trend, standing at 24 in 2020/21 and 21 in 2019/20, compared with 41 in 2016/17, 40 in 2017/18, and 33 in 2018/19 (rolling 12-month figure). This has been achieved by working differently and intervening more intensively at an earlier stage. We will strengthen this method of working as we move forward, deterring young people from becoming tomorrow's criminals, and helping them to make positive lifestyle choices which ultimately benefit and strengthen the communities they live in.

It is evident that there will be much to do during the coming years, but we will continue to strive to make the area a safer place to be, with a strong emphasis on dealing with place based problems and preventing crime in order to reduce the number of local victims. This can only be achieved by working together, recognising that we each have something unique to offer and that by working together we can make North East Lincolnshire a place we can all be proud of.

To conclude, we will concentrate on our most vulnerable residents and communities, on the things that matter the most to local people, and on the crimes that cause the most threat, risk and harm to our residents. We will focus activity around outcomes, and what difference we are making in order to address



the things that matter. Working with our Police and Crime Commissioner, voluntary sector colleagues and engaging with our local communities, we will strive to build resilient, safe, vibrant and cohesive communities, where local people can achieve and prosper and say they are proud to come from North East Lincolnshire.

Chief Superintendent Darren Wildbore

Divisional Commander Chair of North East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership

2. Introduction

The North East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is a statutory partnership, as required by Crime and Disorder Act 1998, which joins up the work of multiple organisations across the borough to tackle crime and disorder and improve community safety.

Responsible authorities, as set out in section five of the Act, have a duty to work together with other local agencies to develop and implement strategies that make a difference to the lives of local people.

The responsible authorities in North East Lincolnshire are:

- Humberside Police
- North East Lincolnshire Council
- Humberside Fire and Rescue Service
- Clinical Commissioning Group (Health)
- Probation Service

Other key agencies include:

- Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
- Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) Alliance
- Voluntary Action North East Lincolnshire
- Victim Support

NAViGO

CSPs are responsible for delivering the following statutory duties:

- 1. Commission Domestic Homicide Reviews
- 2. Analyse a wide range of data, including recorded crime levels and patterns, in order to identify priorities in an annual strategic assessment (JSIA)
- 3. Set out a partnership plan and monitor progress
- 4. Engage and consult with the local community about their priorities and progress made to achieve them
- 5. Set up protocols and systems for sharing information
- 6. Produce a strategy to reduce reoffending
- 7. Hold a joint crime and disorder committee to exercise scrutiny functions in the delivery of CSP duties
- 8. Produce a strategy to reduce alcohol and substance misuse
- 9. Undertake an ASB case review (known commonly as a Community Trigger) where the relevant threshold is met, adopting a problem-solving approach (responsible bodies are set out in statute as councils, police, CCG and providers of social housing and not the full CSP).

In addition to the existing statutory responsibilities, the Home Office has published its intent to introduce new primary legislation, creating a duty on relevant organisations to collaborate, where possible through existing partnership structures, to prevent and reduce serious violence. This will be reinforced by an amendment to Section 6(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1988 to make serious violence an explicit priority for CSPs. Presently this is still in the consultation phase and the terms of reference will be amended with definitive confirmation.

The CSP will ensure that the statutory responsibilities are discharged via monitoring and assurance within the quarterly Board meetings.

3. Vision, mission, and values

PARTNERSHIP VISION

We want all people in North East Lincolnshire to feel safe and be safe. To create neighbourhoods which are safe and enjoyable places to live, where every individual feels part of a united community and is empowered to contribute to the shaping of local services. A borough where all people are safe from harm, and communities thrive.

PARTNERSHIP MISSION

To make our communities safer and stronger by working in partnership with local agencies and communities to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour, improve community safety and reduce the fear of crime. This will be achieved in partnership with other strategic boards by focusing on prevention and early help, tackling offending and re-offending, reducing the dependency on substance misuse and tackling the priority areas set out in the Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership Plan.

PARTNERSHIP VALUES

The Community Safety Partnership adopts the Police and Crime Commissioner's values of working with ambition, bravery, compassion, trust, and connection to the communities we serve. We will strive to deliver outcomes that are in the long-term interests of our communities. People and organisations will be held to account in a challenging but supportive manner, and we will encourage creativity and innovation whilst remaining alert to existing good practice. We will seek continuous improvement and never be content that we are as good as we can be.

NORTH EAST LINCOLNSHIRE OUTCOMES FRAMEWORK

The North East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership supports the North East Lincolnshire Place-based Outcomes Framework, predominantly supporting "all people in North East Lincolnshire will feel safe and are safe" but, in doing so, contributing more broadly.

4. Setting the scene

To ensure the CSP is meeting the needs of the community and allocating its resources in the right places, we have reviewed and refreshed the areas on which we focus our efforts. Our review draws upon input from community engagement, horizon scanning of emerging issues, and data, to give us the richest picture possible on which to base our decision making.

The Community Safety Partnership has a statutory duty to consult on the levels and patterns of crime, disorder and substance misuse in the area, and the matters which the persons living and working in the area consider the responsible authorities should prioritise. This was achieved both through a bespoke survey and by collating the results of existing engagement exercises, including Humberside Police Humber Talking engagement, Neighbourhood Watch survey, and Your Voice Your vote survey of young people.

When asked about the biggest community safety issues within their neighbourhood:

- A high number of respondents have been affected by anti-social behaviour, mostly alcohol-related, begging, and nuisance motorbikes. [JSIA survey]
- The greatest perceived problems were drug related crime and disorder, followed by shop theft and anti-social behaviour. [JSIA survey]
- Neighbourhood Watch groups identified burglary, drug-related offences, and driving offences as the areas of highest concern to the communities.
 [Neighbourhood Watch survey]
- Young people identified mental health and knife crime as their top two concerns. [Your Voice Your Vote survey]
- In seven of the 15 wards ASB is the greatest concern to residents, but in some areas general ASB does not fall within the top three. [Humber Talking consultation]
- 54% of participants agreed or strongly agreed that their area was a safe place to live. [JSIA survey.]

When asked what the CSP should prioritise, the crimes with the highest numbers of responses were:

- Anti-social behaviour (19%)
- Drug related crime (16%)
- Alcohol related crime (10%)

In order to provide context to the community's concerns, the Partnership conducted a Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment. Horizon scanning identified local and national emerging risks, and numerical data illustrated our journey so far, as well as projecting future trends.



To support our Partnership Plan and set out the details of how we will deliver our Vision we are developing a range of live documents – our headline delivery plan, our work programme, our performance framework, and detailed strategies and action plans.

5. Achieving the vision "all people in North East Lincolnshire will feel safe and are safe": our outcomes

The Community Safety Partnership will contribute to the overarching vision by focusing activity into the following two outcomes:

• People are kept safe from crime and disorder

Focusing on five outputs:

- o Dedicated domestic abuse provision with adequately resourced support for victims and their families
- o Dedicated multi-agency approach to reducing anti-social behaviour and protecting repeat victims
- Enhanced criminal justice prevention model to ensure people who commit crime and those who re-offend are supported to address harmful behaviours.
- o Dedicated multi-agency approach to reducing serious violence
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to preventing violence against women and girls
- Vulnerable communities are protected and supported

Focusing on five outputs:

- o Dedicated multi-agency approach to adolescent risk
- Effective treatment is provided to those with substance and alcohol dependency
- o Dedicated multi-agency approach to neighbourhood networking
- o Dedicated multi-agency approach to preventing violent extremism
- o Dedicated multi-agency approach to tackling modern slavery

6. Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner's aims

The Community Safety Partnership's outcomes mirror the aims of the Humberside Police and Crime Commissioner as set out in his Police and Crime Plan 2021-2025:

Our outcome

People are kept safe from crime and disorder – we aim to support and deliver multiagency activities to reduce the incidents and impact of crime and anti-social behaviour in North East Lincolnshire.

Our outcome

Vulnerable communities are protected and supported – we aim to ensure everyone who lives in or visits North East Lincolnshire is able to contribute to the safety of our communities and that communities are supported to become inclusive resilient and self-sustaining.

Partnership mission

To make our communities safer and stronger by working in partnership with local agencies and communities to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour, improve community safety and reduce the fear of crime. This will be achieved in partnership with other strategic boards by focusing on prevention and early help, tackling offending and re-offending, reducing the dependency on substance misuse and tackling the priority areas set out in the Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership Plan.

Police and Crime Commissioner's aim

Engaged, Resilient and Inclusive Communities – our aim is to provide pathways for everyone to contribute to the safety of our communities.

Police and Crime Commissioner's aim

Safer Communities – our aim is to focus activities on interventions that significantly impact on local crime levels.

Police and Crime Commissioner's aim

Effective Organisations – we aim to work effectively and efficiently as a multi-agency partnership in order to promote community safety within our borough.

7. What is our baseline?

Domestic abuse

Partners across North East Lincolnshire continue to work together to support victims of domestic abuse via multi agency arrangements that focus on prevention, protection, provision and pursuing those that perpetrate abuse. During 2020 a review of the current arrangements was undertaken, and it was acknowledged that wider investment was required in specific areas. This has resulted in a revised strategy and increased investment.



Whilst Domestic Abuse incidents have remained consistent across North East Lincolnshire over the past three years, there continues to be a high level of incidents that go on to be recorded as a crime, which then increases the likelihood of bringing the perpetrator to justice. Whilst all domestic abuse is concerning, further analysis indicates that the higher risk perpetrators are being arrested. A wide range of support remains in place to support victims of domestic abuse which will be further strengthened by the revised strategy and commissioning arrangements.

Anti-social behaviour



In 2020/21 youth ASB decreased as a proportion of total ASB, reducing from 40% of total ASB in 2019/20 to 32% in 2020/21. During the last two years we have seen recorded ASB reduce by 19.5% which equates to 746 fewer victims. This indicates that the stepped approach around early intervention and diversion is working. It is recognised that young people engaging in ASB eventually progress to criminal offences and first-time youth entrants into the criminal justice system is also currently amongst the lowest in the country.

Offending and reoffending



Adult offending

MAPPA (Multi-agency Public Protection Arrangements) are a set of arrangements to manage the risk posed by the most serious sexual and violent offenders under the Criminal Justice Act 2003. High risk offenders are managed through MAPPA to share information across agencies and develop robust plans to manage risks. There are three levels of management within MAPPA, with level 2 and 3 offenders being managed by multi-agency panels to ensure resources are targeted where most needed. Since April 2020 there have been no MAPPA serious case reviews amongst high and very high-risk MAPPA offenders managed by Level 2 and 3 panels within the North East Lincolnshire area.

During 2021, the National Probation Service and the Humberside, Lincolnshire, North Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation Company have transitioned to a unified Probation Service. Locally the North and North East Lincolnshire Probation Delivery Unit is part of the Yorkshire and Humber Probation Region and is responsible for delivering pre-sentence advice to court, managing people subject to probation supervision and the delivery of offending behavioural targeted interventions.

Youth offending

Between January 2020 and December 2020 North East Lincolnshire achieved a figure of 23 first time entrants to the justice system, with a rate of 151 per 100,000. This a decrease from the previous reporting period January – December 2019, which showed 23 and a rate of 163 per 100,000. Between July 2020 and June 2021 North East Lincolnshire achieved a figure of 3 young people in a custodial setting with a rate of 0.19 per 1,000. This an improvement from the previous reporting period, July 2019 – June 2020 which showed 7 young people in a custodial setting, with a rate of 0.46 per 1,000. North East Lincolnshire Youth Offending Service has historically had a high binary reoffences rate. This has remained the same for this period, with the 3 month rate being an increase from 44% to 60%, however the number in the cohort has reduced from 25 to 20, with the re offenders only increasing by 1. The rationale being that the YOS now deal with the highest risk of re-offenders due to the diversion policy increasing and having succeeding.

Serious violence

Prior to 2020/21 serious violence has been addressed through other mechanisms such as work to tackle organised crime or crime in the night-time economy. Although there has been no dedicated partnership focus in this area, small decreases in the number of incidents of violence have been achieved which we hope to build upon. Ongoing work includes Humberside Police operations to tackle organised crime groups, county lines, and dangerous drugs networks; disruption and prosecution of individuals responsible for violent offences; annual Op Sceptre knife amnesty; specialist domestic abuse interventions; personal safety awareness raising campaigns; use of metal detecting wands in licensed premises; and use of street marshals to assist with diffusion of tension and public reassurance in the night-time economy.







Violence against women and girls

As a consequence of the murder of Sarah Everard violence, against women and girls has become a focus for police forces and statutory agencies. Nationally, annual data from the last two Crime Surveys for England and Wales, shows us that women are the victims of 84% of all sexual offences, rising to 90% of all reported offences of rape.

The national Police lead (DCC Maggie Blyth) has identified three overarching objectives:

- Improving trust and confidence in policing
- Relentlessly pursuing perpetrators
- Creating safer spaces.

It is clear that to tackle this societal issue requires statutory agencies, third sector organisations, and communities to work together.

Adolescent risk

The adolescent risk strategy was developed in autumn 2020 and provided an umbrella overview of adolescent risk and extra familial safeguarding. The strategy is heavily linked to Contextual Safeguarding methodology and aims to address and continuously improve the ways we are tackling potential risks to adolescent young people within all communities of North East Lincolnshire

It is acknowledged that risks may be present within both intra- and extra-familial situations, however, the strategy focuses on our efforts to address extrafamilial factors, including our integrated and holistic approach to child criminal exploitation (as well as modern day slavery), child sexual exploitation, missing children, substance misuse and mental health all informed by a contextual safeguarding framework.

Alcohol and substance dependency

North East Lincolnshire Council Public Health Department commissions four services that provide support for those effected by alcohol and other drugs. These are:

- We Are With You (WAWY)
- Grimsby Practices in Partnership (GPiP)
- Specialist Carer Post based in the North East Lincolnshire Carer's Service
- Creative Start/Recovery Community (The Comeback)

All services work in partnership with each other, as well as with public, private, and voluntary organisations, to meet the identified areas of need as set out in The North East Lincolnshire Alcohol and Drugs Strategic Framework.



The number of people (rolling total) of individuals accessing treatment provision from WAWY and GPiP has remained constant across the last three-year period with 1,318 in 2018/29, a slight dip to 1,200 in 2019/20 and 1,332 in 2020/21.

Neighbourhood networking



Numbers of active neighbourhood watch groups declined dramatically due to the age profile and ill health of those managing the groups. Traditionally they have been operated by older people who are gradually no longer able to continue the role and are not replaced. The impact of the global pandemic meant that fewer residents engaged due to self-isolating. New approaches to wider "neighbourhood networking" (including neighbourhood watch) are being actively explored, which allow residents to take a more flexible approach to their involvement in community safety; whilst strengthening connections with neighbourhood policing teams, the *My Community Alert* system, and other resident-led initiatives.

Preventing violent extremism

A multi-agency *Prevent and Protect Board*, coordinated by the local authority, continues to oversee the delivery of the Prevent and Protect Strategy. Wider oversight and support continue to be provided by the Humberside Police Gold Group and wider counter terrorism advisors. Over the past year:

- A wide range of online communication campaigns have been undertaken resulting in a reach of 44,000 hits and further 1,500 engagements
- We have increased our online training offer to agencies resulting in 100 new practitioners receiving more specialist training
- We have also increased the number of Prevent Champions who act as a point of contact and a conduit to share information within their organisation with
 over 50 identified champions.
- Effective multi-agency Channel Panel arrangements have remained in place to assess and manage any individuals who are referred for support.

Tackling modern slavery

The North East Lincolnshire Modern Slavery Partnership has been established to prevent and disrupt modern slavery and human trafficking, and engage with communities, other agencies, and local businesses to raise awareness. There continue to be improvements in the response to modern slavery locally. From January 2020 to December 2020 a total of 74 intelligence submissions were made to Humberside Police. Thirty-seven investigations took place with the two highest categories being criminal exploitation, accounting for 27 investigations, and forced labour, accounting for four investigations. Thirty-five people were referred to the National Referral Mechanism (NRM) process, with the same two highest categories of criminal exploitation accounting for 20 referrals, and forced labour accounting for 11 referrals. Of these 35 referrals, 16 related to children and 19 related to adults. The Graft Project continues to work with children identified or at risk of criminal exploitation.

8. What will be different as a result of working together as a community safety partnership?

Domestic abuse

During the next 12 months a new commissioning framework will be developed which will result in increased provision for high-risk victims, continued Target Hardening provision and dedicated support for children and families where domestic abuse is present. We will also implement the new Safe Accommodation duties as set out in the new Domestic Abuse Act 2021.

Anti-social behaviour

Humberside Police, North East Lincolnshire Council ASB team and other key stakeholders work in collaboration to constantly monitor the data, identify residential and business locations, especially those identified as repeat victims to target offenders to ultimately reduce calls for service. A problem Oriented Policing model is developed by using an OSARA plan, shared collectively by partners. This has resulted in more focused place based locality meetings, guided by a revised partnership ASB strategy.

Offending and reoffending

Adult offending

Effective rehabilitation of people on probation has long been recognised as an essential ingredient of ensuring public protection through reducing the rate of re-offending. We are striving towards a whole systems approach, where:

- victims of crime are heard and provided information at every stage of their journey;
- we share information and data with our strategic partners to improve our understanding of why people offend and the different pathways out of offending for people on probation including women, older people, those with mental health issues, people from black and ethnic minorities and LGBTQ+;
- we are working with the Judiciary to improve the range and scope of the alternatives to custody;
- we explore opportunities to co-commission and co-locate within communities and with our partners to achieve better reducing re-offending outcomes around priority areas of accommodation, employment and substance misuse;
- we continue to pilot innovative interventions and programmes, for example, through the Community Accommodation Service [CAS3] Fund for transition accommodation in our region;

 we recognise people's ability to change and are committed to employing individuals with previous convictions, as well as working the third sector and the supply chain to identify employment opportunities in our communities.

Central to our ability to deliver services is fostering a culture of inclusion, innovation, continuous improvements and transforming through partnerships. The unified model presents an opportunity for us to benefit from lessons from both the Community Rehabilitation Company [CRC] and National Probation Service [NPS], which will help shape how we deliver interventions to people on probation.

Youth offending

The prevention of initial offending is developed around local desistance factors, these include family set ups, peer, groups, substance misuse, exploitation attainment and attendance in education and many others relating to positive destinations and a good life for our young people.

To ensure that the re-offending binary rate, percentage of the cohort that go onto re-offend, frequency rate, amount of crime divided by the reoffending cohort and the development of the desistance factors are moving in a positive manner requires a partnership approach, developed through the local statutory board arrangements as described in the Crime and Disorder Act. Local re-offending rates are a national performance indicator for the Youth Justice Board. Offending and re-offending rates for Young People are the sole responsibility of local Youth Justice Services.

Serious violence

A new Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill is currently being debated in parliament. Once passed, this will create new primary legislation to tackle serious violence and amend existing legislation to make this a priority for CSPs. CSP member organisations will have a duty to collaborate through existing partnership structures to prevent and reduce serious violence. In preparation for this the CSP has established a dedicated multi-agency task group which uses the 'four P' approach (prepare, prevent, protect and pursue) in order to develop a local problem profile, strategy, and action plan to address local need.

Violence against women and girls

The CSP has signed up to the regional statement of intent to work collaboratively to prioritise and tackle violence, abuse and harassment against women and girls. A preliminary self-assessment has been completed in order to establish a local baseline position. This is being used to inform the development of a partnership approach to early intervention, action against those who perpetrate violence, and support for victims. CSP member organisations commit to challenging inappropriate behaviours in order to effect cultural change, contributing to safer communities for all.

Adolescent risk

To ensure that all current risks faced by children in North East Lincolnshire are developed consistently, avoiding unnecessary duplication, a new adolescent risk strategic group is to be introduced to further develop areas of concern within our communities. Through this process themed performance dashboards are being developed to fully understand baselines, indicators and what good looks like in all areas.

Alcohol and substance dependency

Following the approval of the Alcohol and other Drugs Strategic Framework, multi-agency delivery groups have been established to progress actions against the four key themes. The CSP is an integral element to the activities required to deliver the outcomes of the framework, especially in respect of the prevention and safety strands and, as such, one of the groups is chaired by the CSP Manager.

Alongside this NELC Public Health has been awarded a Section 31 local authority grant for additional drug treatment, crime, and harm reduction activity in 2021/22. The grant aims to help local areas drive down the crime associated with the drug market, particularly acquisitive crime and violent crime, and the rise in drug-related deaths. This can only be achieved by true partnership working between the substance misuse treatment provider We Are With You; CSP members; criminal justice partners such as the Prison Service, Liaison and Diversion and the Courts; and other services such as the local recovery community, pharmacies, home options team, homelessness services, social care, etc.

Neighbourhood networking

Over the next year we will re-establish the multi-agency networking groups linked to place-based tasking sessions with the police and other community safety partners to add value to our work via a more joined up approach. We will also plan my community alert communication campaigns together via this group and link with the partnership's communication working group for greater impact. Our training and briefing sessions will involve other community safety partner members to ensure the most appropriate professional input is shared to achieve the best possible solutions for community-based problems. We will also research and share best practice from other areas and create our own case studies and practical examples to share across the Humberside force area. Our Keeping Older People Safe initiative will be embedded with neighbourhood policing teams to further protect and support vulnerable elderly people. Designing our crime work, currently being experimented with via the Safer Streets West Marsh programme will be strengthened for potential rollout to benefit other wards.

Preventing violent extremism

Following the annual Counter Terrorism Local Profile (CTLP) which provides an assessment of national, regional and local risk, a refreshed Prevent and Protect Strategy will be developed with a supporting local delivery plan to further strengthen partner arrangements. Over the next 12 months we will undertake a self-assessment utilising the Home Office Toolkit and incorporate any new activity into our local delivery plan. We will start to consider the Protect and Prepare element of the Governments CONTEST strategy, and also strengthen our local Channel arrangements by implementing revised best practice guidance.

Tackling modern slavery

The North East Lincolnshire Modern Slavery Partnership has been established to prevent and disrupt modern slavery and human trafficking, and engage with communities, other agencies, and local businesses to raise awareness. During the next 12 months, a refreshed strategy and delivery plan will be developed to raise awareness, provide training opportunities, strengthen support, improve the identification of potential victims including children and strengthen enforcement activity.

9. How will we achieve our outcomes?

| Output | What we will do |
|--|---|
| Dedicated domestic abuse provision with adequately resourced support for victims and their families | Work towards the NEL Domestic Abuse Strategy 2021-2024 to: Increase the number of Independent Domestic Violence Advocates who provide support to high-risk victims Continue to provide Target Hardening to victims of domestic abuse following commitment of local agency funding Develop a dedicated domestic abuse provision as part of the Children & Families <i>Early Help</i> offer Develop new domestic abuse duties around safe accommodation to comply with the Domestic Abuse Act in readiness for newly commissioned provision |
| Dedicated multi-agency approach to reducing anti- social behaviour and protecting repeat victims | Work towards the NELC ASB Strategy to: Further develop the Community Trigger, reaching effective practise, gaining quality mark from ASB HELP Further enhance the ASB Panel to identify children and young people at risk of criminalisation and exploitation. Working to address the root causes of the related ASB issues, adopting a child first, non-punitive and whole family approach Maintain a geographical responsibility for ASB related issues increasing partnership working to reduce victimisation, identify vulnerable individuals and seek longer term solutions to community ASB problems Act as lead local authority team to address issues of ASB, coordinate multi-agency partnership working to address specific ASB issues, both short and longer term |
| Enhanced criminal justice prevention model to ensure people who commit crime and those who re-offend are supported to address harmful behaviours. | Work towards reducing youth offending and re-offending by: Further developing the data processes around the top 10 under 18s suspected of committing crime on a 6-weekly basis Further developing the NEL re-offending live tracking tool and take information to weekly Signs of Safety meetings Furthering the NEL youth justice model to allow trigger points during the justice journey of the child to identify vulnerabilities and signpost for specialist support Continuing to develop the diversion offer for young people supporting desistance factors to slow offending and reduce first time youth entrants in the borough Support adults who commit crime and those who reoffend by: Delivering the first phase of Probation Unification in North East Lincolnshire Establishing the Probation Service Community Integration Team Establishing a reducing re-offending structure in North East Lincolnshire |



| Dedicated multi-agency approach to neighbourhood networking | Progress the aims of the Neighbourhood Networking Strategic Statement 2021–2023 by: Establishing multi-agency neighbourhood network comprising working group and network of members Sharing effective communications using My Community Alert and NEL Watch website Introduce multi-agency community problem solving via training sessions and practical application Keeping Older People Safe (KOPS) via print / audio information sharing, briefing sessions, and security items Designing out crime by clearing obstacles / improving visibility |
|---|--|
| Dedicated multi-agency approach to preventing violent extremism | Work towards the North East Lincolnshire Modern Slavery Strategy 2021-24 by: Refreshing the Prevent Strategy to include the Protect element of the CONTEST strategy Undertaking a self-assessment of Channel process and providing assurance statement to Home Office Undertaking a self-assessment of Prevent arrangements utilising Home Office benchmark standards |
| Dedicated multi-agency approach to tackling modern slavery | Work towards the North East Lincolnshire Modern Slavery Strategy 2021-24 Refresh the Modern Slavery Strategy and delivery plan Undertake online awareness campaigns to raise awareness Establish modern slavery champions within a wide range of organisations and voluntary sector groups Establish a multi-agency operational enforcement group |

10. How will we track our performance?

The CSP Board is responsible for agreeing the priorities of the partnership, and for delivery against those priorities to improve community safety across North East Lincolnshire. The CSP Board will achieve this by:

- Having strategic oversight of issues relating to all aspects of community safety.
- Overseeing the production of annual Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment and Partnership Plan.
- Utilising data and intelligence from available crime audits, needs assessments and other data sources to inform strategic tactical and operational activity, initiatives and interventions.
- Maximising the opportunities of closer integrated partnership working to avoid duplicity, improve efficiency and provide value for money.
- Ensuring partnership task groups are outcome focused and delivering against identified priorities.
- Making decisions in an inclusive and transparent way.

The CSP Board meets quarterly to review performance data demonstrating the delivery of our outcomes, along with horizon scanning for emerging risks. High level data can be 'drilled down' to show where crime is most prevalent, and where the need for our intervention is greatest. Progress against our delivery plan is also monitored quarterly, with an annual review of both funded and non-funded CSP outcomes which contribute to our overall vision. An annual Joint Strategic Intelligence Assessment is undertaken to gather a broad spectrum of intelligence which, in conjunction with community consultation, informs our strategic planning to ensure continuous feedback and improvement.

One vision:

All people in North East Lincolnshire will feel safe and are safe

Two outcomes:

- People are kept safe from crime and disorder
- Vulnerable communities are protected and supported

Ten outputs:

- Dedicated domestic abuse provision with adequately resourced support for victims and their families
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to reducing anti-social behaviour and protecting repeat victims
- Enhanced criminal justice prevention model to ensure people who commit crime and those who reoffend are supported to address harmful behaviours.
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to reducing serious violence
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to preventing violence against women and girls
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to adolescent risk
- Effective treatment is provided to those with substance and alcohol dependency
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to neighbourhood networking
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to preventing violent extremism
- Dedicated multi-agency approach to tackling modern slavery

Monitored and informed by the annual report

Monitored and informed by quarterly performance data

Monitored at CSP Board level by quarterly tracking against the delivery plan

Monitored at delivery group level by frequent tracking against individual action plans

For further information on the **Community Safety Partnership Plan**, or to get involved, please contact us by email at **rebecca.freeman@nelincs.gov.uk** or by post to Municipal Offices, Town Hall Square, Grimsby DN31 1HU.

This document can also be made available in large print, Braille or another language.



